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.The Earleigh Heights Volunteer Fire Company Station was evaluated for the National Register of Historic Places (NRHP) using
Criteria A, B, and C. The property does not meet Criterion A, because even though it represents a period of local governments
reacting to the needs of rapidly growing suburban populations, this pattern was experienced by communities throughout this
country, and this is not a distinctive example and does not contribute to the broad patterns of our history. It does not meet
Criterion B because it is not associated with significant persons in our past. The station does not meet Criterion C because it lacks
distinction as an example of Modern, functionalist civic architecture, having been altered by material and design changes. Further,
it is not the work of a master and does not possess high artistic values. The property was not evaluated under Criterion D as part
of this assessment. Therefore, the Earleigh Heights Volunteer Fire Company Station is not eligible for the NRHP.
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1. Name of Property (indicate preferred name)
historic  Earleigh Heights Volunteer Fire Company Station
other
2. Location
street and number 161 Ritchie Highway __not for publication
city, town Severna Park vicinity
county__Anne Arundel County
3. Owner of Property (give names and mailing addresses of all owners)
name FEarleigh Heights Volunteer Fire Department Inc.
street and number P.O. Box 547 telephone
city, town Severna Park state  MD zipcode 21146
4. Location ot Legal Description
courthouse, registry of deeds, etc. liber 142 folio 14
city, town Annapolis tax map 0023 tax parcel 0253 tax ID number 0300024823400
5. Primary Location of Additional Data
Contributing Resource in National Register District
Contributing Resource in Local Historic District
Determined Eligible for the National Register/Maryland Register
Determined Ineligible for the National Register/Maryland Register
Recorded by HABS/HAER
Historic Structure Report or Research Report at MHT
Other:
6. Classification
Category Ownership Current Function Resource Count
__ district ___ public ___agriculture landscape Contributing Noncontributing
1 building(s) X private commerce/trade x recreation/culture 1 buildings
structure both defense religion sites
site domestic x social structures
1 object education transportation 1 objects
funerary work in progress 2 Total
x government unknown Number of Contributing Resources
health care_____vacant/not in use previously listed in the Inventory 0

industry _x other: community




7. Descriptionlnventory No. AA-0%5

Condition
excellent deteriorated
X good ruins
fair altered

Prepare both a one paragraph summary and a comprehensive description of the resource and its various
elements as it exists today.

The Earleigh Heights Volunteer Fire Company Station, built in 1957, is a two-story, brick building set on nine-
and-one-half acres at the southeast corner of Ritchie Highway and Magothy Bridge Road. It is utilitarian in
design, and has a large, one-story rear wing. The primary facade, characterized by five garage bays, faces west
towards Ritchie Highway. At the property’s northwest corner stands a simple wood shelter from which a large
iron bell hangs.

The Earleigh Heights Volunteer Fire Company Station is two stories tall, brick-clad, and utilitarian in its design.
The primary facade features five vehicular bays with metal pull-down doors, located to the right of paired,
metal-framed, plate-glass doors. The pull-down doors each contain three oval lights, and the three center doors
are slightly wider than the two flanking doors. Brick piers divide each bay, and a cantilevered awning divides
the two stories, and the second floor features six, tripartite sash windows under a continuous soldier course.
Each sash has six lights, and these are replacement. An image printed in the Baltimore Sun in 1982 shows that
the original second floor window openings containing twenty-five-light casement units; the original vehicular
doors had four, rectangular lights. Likewise, the sign which displays activities at the fire hall has been added
since 1982.

The side and rear elevations reveal a one-story rear wing, which contains a rental hall with capacity for 600
persons. The two-story section’s north elevation has single and paired sash windows with six-over-six and
four-over-four configurations. The two-story section’s northwest corner rises approximately one-half-story
taller than the rest of the roof, and this mini-tower features one-by-one horizontal sash windows and supports a
lattice tower. The north elevation’s rear section features evenly spaced drain-spouts and solid metal doors. The
west, or rear, elevation features a centrally located porch set between solid brick side walls. The porch extends
under a shed-roof supported by plain wood posts and is also recessed under the addition’s main flat roof. A
contemporary, recessed entrance portico is along the south elevation’s one-story section. It features brick piers
beneath a stucco cornice and two pairs of metal-framed, plate-glass doors. The two-story section’s south
elevation has single, paired, and tripartite replacement windows and an exterior, metal staircase leading to two
metal doors on the second floor. Throughout the building, the flat roofs support various heating and cooling
apparatus. The two-story section has a small parapet, while the rear wing has aluminum flashing at the juncture
of wall and roof.

The Earleigh Heights Volunteer Fire Company Station is typical of fire department stations built in the mid-
twentieth century, exhibiting a functionalist style. The garage bays are the focal point of the building,
occupying the majority of the primary facade’s first floor. The interior is divided into garage space on the first
floor, lounge area upstairs, and office and a large banquet area in the rear. The substantial parking lot
surrounding the station provides ample room for the fire trucks to maneuver quickly and also provides parking
space for users of the banquet room, emphasizing the public use of the building. The adjacent open land is used
for the annual fire department carnival which is necessary to raise funds for the department, which receives
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minimal county founding and relies on community support. The adjacent open land also provides space for fire
department training.

Community facilities of the middle twentieth century frequently incorporate commemorative statues,
monuments, or art work on their grounds; the Earleigh Heights Fire Company Station illustrates this character-
defining element through the display of the Baltimore Bell Foundry bell in a pyramid-roofed shed at the
southeast corner of Ritchie Highway and Magothy Bridge Road. The bell is inscribed, “Baltimore Bell Foundry,
J. Regester & Sons, Baltimore MD., 1894.”




8. Significancelnventory No. AA-2 055

Period Areas of Significance Check and justify below

1600-1699 agriculture economics health/medicine performing arts

1700-1799 archeology education industry philosophy

1800-1899  x architecture engineering invention x politics/government

x 1900-1999 art entertainment/ landscape architecture religion

2000- commerce recreation law science
___communications __ ethnic heritage __ literature _Xx_social history
___community planning __ exploration/ ___ maritime history __ transportation

conservation settlement military other:
Specific dates  1957-58 Architect/Builder

Construction dates 1957-58

Evaluation for:
X  National Register Maryland Register not evaluated

Prepare a one-paragraph summary statement of significance addressing applicable criteria, followed by a
narrative discussion of the history of the resource and its context. (For compliance projects, complete
evaluation on a DOE Form — see manual.)

The Earleigh Heights Volunteer Fire Company Station represents several aspects of Anne Arundel County
history. It is an example of a community building and reflects the role of volunteer fire companies in the
twentieth century. It is also a mid-twentieth century example of the fire station building type and can be
considered in its architectural history context of Anne Arundel County fire stations. The Baltimore Bell
Company bell present on the property pre-dates the existing station; it portrays the historic aspect of the
company, but is not historically significant in its own merit.

The Earleigh Heights Volunteer Fire Company was founded in 1918 by local community members. The first
station was built in 1919, on skids, so that it could be relocated if needed. It consisted of a frame, gable-roofed
barn, topped by a pyramidal-roofed tower from which a large bell hung, presumably the bell now standing at the
corner of Ritchie Highway and Earleigh Heights Road. The company began receiving some financial support
from Anne Arundel County in 1924, but in 1927, Annapolis, Earleigh Heights, and Eastport volunteer
firefighters went on strike protesting unfair distribution of county funds, claiming Glen Burnie received more
than its fair share. In 1929, the Earleigh Heights Volunteer Fire Company became one of nine companies that
founded the Anne Arundel Volunteer Firefighter’s Association which initiated legislative benefits to firefighters
and fire companies. The first permanent Earleigh Heights station was built in 1929-30 on land purchased from
Ben Brodner elsewhere in the Earleigh Heights community than the existing fire station’s location.

In 1945, the Earleigh Heights Volunteer Fire Department began hosting its annual carnival on land owned by a
Mr. Rennie; this is the current location of the Earleigh Heights Volunteer Fire Department Station. The carnival
was a needed fundraiser as county funds were not sufficient to meet the costs of running the station. The
pressures of the Earleigh Heights Volunteer Fire Company to provide service increased in the years following
World War II, as mass migration to Anne Arundel County occurred. The county’s population grew from
67,000 in 1940 to 116,500 in 1950, and to 206,600 in 1960. In 1955, the company purchased the four acres
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where they held their carnival from Mr. Rennie at the corner of Ritchie Highway and Earleigh Heights Road for
the purpose of building a larger, more modern fire station.

In January 1956, Anne Arundel County witnessed what remains Maryland’s worst public assembly disaster,
when a fire at the Arundel Park social hall occurred during an oyster roast sponsored by Brooklyn’s St. Rose of
Lima Roman Catholic Church. The Earleigh Heights company was one of many companies that were called to
the fire. Eleven people were killed and hundreds were injured, prompting questions about whether Maryland’s
fire prevention and protection measures were adequate. The event remained in the public conscious, and it is
likely that building funds may have been more easily raised as a result of the tragedy. Construction began for
the current Earleigh Heights Volunteer Fire Department Station in 1957 and was completed in January 1958,
the month in which its 600-person capacity rental hall held its first oyster roast, sponsored by the Linthicum
Lions Club. Thus, the building is a safe community gathering space for bingo games, weddings, dances,
dinners and Elks, Kiwanis and Rotary Club meetings.

The Anne Arundel County Fire Department was established in 1965, following the 1964 adoption of a charter
form of government in Anne Arundel County. The Anne Arundel County Fire Department is composed of 31
stations served by volunteer and career fire fighters. Most of the Anne Arundel County fire stations are one-
story in height and utilitarian in design with brick walls and flat roofs. The area occupied by the firefighters
tends to be to one side of the area occupied by their vehicles. No architectural differences can be discerned
between stations run by volunteers and those run by professional fire fighters, although various construction
dates reveal different stylistic trends.

The earliest extant fire stations in Anne Arundel County are in Annapolis. The old City Hall and Fire House
(MIHP # AA-581) at 211 Main Street was built 1821-1822 by the City of Annapolis as the first building erected
by the city for municipal purposes. It was used as a firehouse until 1868. While it has been altered to serve as
commercial purposes, the two-story building originally contained a ground floor to house fire engines and a
meeting room on the upper level. Later fire houses built in Annapolis in the early twentieth century retain this
basic form. The Rescue Hose Company (MIHP # AA-1996) at 114 West Street was built in 1908 and is a two-
story brick building with Italianate elements including keystones, a heavy cornice, and pyramidal-roofed corner
towers. The single fire engine bay dominates the ground level and displays the building’s use. The application
of towers on fire houses results in several uses. Towers provided a look-out to identify fires; they contained
bells to warn the community of fire; and the interior space provided hanging storage for hoses to keep them
from being damaged on the ground. Corner towers are also present at the Waterwitch Hook and Ladder Fire
Station #1 at 33 East Street (MIHP # AA-483), built in 1913. The Waterwitch Station exhibits the Italianate
style more strongly, featuring a round-arched garage bay, keystones, quoins, and a heavily corniced central
gable with lunette window; the eastern tower supports a diminutive round tempietto housing a siren. It has later
additions and was kept in use as a fire station until 1986. The Waterwitch Station expresses the peak of
elaborate ornament in Anne Arundel County fire stations. The Independent Fire Company #2 at 161 Duke of
Gloucester Street (MIHP # AA-1335), built in 1917 only four years after the Waterwitch Station, reflects the
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same form as previous Annapolis fire stations, being two stories tall, with a single garage bay occupying the
first floor and firefighter space above. Its style, however, is Colonial Revival expressed by Flemish bond brick,
cast-stone architrave window surrounds, pedimented and fluted door surrounds, projecting cornices, and
paneled parapet. Its original garage bay was a round arch, and its hose tower has been removed.

Following World War I, fire stations in the County tended to feature a stepped parapet. Parapets in general
serve as a fire protection measure when buildings are built close together. A stepped parapet is sometimes
referred to as a fire-step, which refers to a step built into a trench which soldiers stepped on to fire their rifles.
Thus the stepped parapet may have held associations with defense and protection. Anne Arundel County fire
stations with stepped parapets include Riviera Beach, built in 1930; Linthicum, built in 1938 via a Public Works
Administration grant; Galesville; Avalon Shores; and Woodland Beach. They range from one to three stories in
height and have various levels of decoration.

Major suburban population increases following World War II necessitated increase in community buildings,
such as schools, libraries, post offices, municipal buildings, churches, and fire houses. The new buildings were
typically characterized by utilitarian, flat-roofed forms with sleek bands of windows. Many of these buildings
are single-story, reflecting the suburban location where land was cheap and transportation was dominated by
private automobile. The Earleigh Heights Volunteer Fire Department Station retains the more traditional two-
story form of a firehouse, in which firefighters spend time on the upper level waiting to be called and quickly
descend to the garage via fire pole. The Earleigh Heights Volunteer Fire Department reflects its suburban
location and mid-century design through its broadness, which contrasts with early urban firehouses, which
tended to be only one bay wide and highly decorative, and from the 1920s and 1930s firehouses with stepped
parapets. The Earleigh Heights station shares its mid-century characteristic flat roof with Ferndale (built
1955); Cape St. Claire (1957 with 1960 and 1962 additions); Jessup; Glen Burnie; Odenton (built 1943 with
1963 addition); Herald Harbor; Arnold; Lake Shore; and the Anne Arundel County Fire Department
Headquarters (1965).

Following the consolidation of the Anne Arundel County Fire Department, mansard roofs commonly appear in
the fire stations built in the 1970s, including South Glen Burnie (1972), Waugh Chapel (1976), Jones Station,
West Annapolis, and Harmans/Dorsey. Recent decades have brought about stations with gabled roofs, such as
Severn, Annapolis Neck, and Maryland City; hipped roofs such as Taylor Avenue, Brooklyn Park, and Orchard
Beach; and unique post-modern roofs, such as Forest Drive and BWI.

The tower feature, which is minimally present in the Earleigh Heights station, is shared with fire stations from
all decades of the twentieth century, from the Italianate Waterwitch and Rescue Hose stations in Annapolis, to
the flat-roofed utilitarian designs at Ferndale (1955) and Jessup, to the mansard-roof stations of the 1970s like
South Glen Burnie, Harmans/Dorsey, and Waugh Chapel, to post-modern stations such as Harwood (1985) and
Brooklyn Park.
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The bell located at the corner of Ritchie Highway and Earleigh Heights Road appears to have been part of the
Earleigh Heights company’s equipment for several decades, although the bell predates the Earleigh Heights
company’s organization. A photograph on the company’s website shows a bell present in a tower placed atop
the first Earleigh Heights station. The Baltimore Bell Company was part of the J. Regester & Sons Company.
Joshua Regester (1816-1906) began business as Clampit & Regester in ca. 1844. The firm later became
Regester & Webb, and later still J. Regester and Sons. They produced bells for churches, firehalls, ships, and
navigational lights, and also produced brass and plumbing supplies. In 1897, the firm employed 425 men.
Following Joshua Regester’s death, his four sons entered lawsuits against each other, and the J. Regester Sons
Company was sold at auction in 1909 in order to settle debts among the brothers. (A February 1908 fire
destroyed the four-story brick building at the southeast corner of Holliday and Saratoga Streets where the
company was headquartered.) Baltimore was well known for its bell production, but the Baltimore Bell
Company was not as well known as the McShane Bell Company, which is one of the few foundries still
producing bells today.

As explained in the accompanying Determination of Eligibility from, Maryland State Highway Administration
has evaluated the fire station for National Register of Historic Places eligibility.




9. Major Bibliographical References Inventory No. AA-2055

Anne Arundel County Fire Department Homepage http://www.aacounty.org/Fire/Stations/index.cfm
Anne Arundel County Volunteer Firefighters Association Website http://www.aacvfa.org/content/History/
Earleigh Heights VFC Website: History http://www.ehvfc.org/sitecontent/index/page/History

10. Geographical Data

Acreage of surveyed property 9.752 acres
Acreage of historical setting  9.752 acres
Quadrangle name  Round Bay Quadrangle scale:

Verbal boundary description and justification

LT 1 OR 9.752 ACRES, Map 023, Parcel 0253

11. Form Prepared by

nameftitle Rebecca Crew, Architectural Historian

organization Maryland State Highway Administration date  January 3, 2012
street & number 707 N. Calvert Street telephone  410-345-5793
city or fown Baltimore state ~ MD

The Maryland Inventory of Historic Properties was officially created by an Act of the Maryland
Legislature to be found in the Annotated Code of Maryland, Article 41, Section 181 KA,
1974 supplement.

The survey and inventory are being prepared for information and record purposes only
and do not constitute any infringement of individual property rights.

return to: Maryland Historical Trust
Maryland Department of Planning

100 Community Place

Crownsville, MD 21032-2023
410-514-7600













/1/\".’-4}'/;}' Y A 7

%ﬂ( (et )/1 e .',«/%*3
(

1, . |
~1} A
A,‘L > {
< Y’
Of
nb sp
erc



















%
o) 4







"f’ct{ =)






















